
 

 

 
 
 

 
   6 October 2014 

 
 
 

NOTICE OF MEETING 

 

FLEMING PARK CONSULTATIVE GROUP 

will meet on 
Tuesday, 14 October 2014 

beginning at 
7:00 pm 

in 
Rooms 11/12/13, Eastleigh House, Upper Market Street, Eastleigh 

 
TO: Councillors A Broadhurst, Irish, Noyce, Pragnell, Scott, Sollitt and Trenchard 
 
Co-Optees: C Abraham (5.0 Club), S Boote (Running), L Browning (Swimming),  
  J Coxen (Badminton), R Cutler (Tennis), J Gardner (Mini Soccer),  
  S Johnson (Squash), C Jones (Running), S Kemish (Judo), P Kirkpatrick 

(EDSAD), L Massey (Ballet), D Moore (Bowls), E Szary (Fitness) 
 
D C Leisure: P Leamore, L May and J Parker  
 
Eastleigh Borough Council: A Thompson 
 
Staff Contact: Jack Grounds - Democratic Services Officer  

Tel: 023 8068 8026  Email: jack.grounds@eastleigh.gov.uk  
   
 
Refreshments will be available from 6.30 pm 
 
Please bring any leaflets about your Club to the meeting, where they can be 
exchanged with those from other Clubs and please bring a hard copy of your Club 
update to ensure accurate record in the minutes. 
 
 
 

RICHARD WARD 
Head of Legal and Democratic Services 

 
_____________________________________________________________________ 
 
 

 

Eastleigh House 
Upper Market Street 
Eastleigh SO50 9YN 



 

 

AGENDA 

1. Apologies     
 
2. Minutes of Previous Meeting and Matters Arising    (Pages 1 - 6) 
 
3. Proposed Scale of Charges from January 2015    (Pages 7 - 12) 
 
4. New Fleming Park Leisure Centre Update     
 
5. Update from Clubs     
 
6. Any Other Business     
 
7. Date of Next Meeting     
 

DATE OF NEXT MEETING 
Tuesday, 24 March 2015 at 7:00 pm 

at The Park Suite, Fleming Park Leisure 
Centre, Passfield Avenue, Eastleigh 

 
 

 



1 

 

FLEMING PARK CONSULTATIVE GROUP 
 

Thursday, 10 July 2014  (7:00 pm – 8:50 pm) 
 

PRESENT: 
 

Councillor A Broadhurst (Chairman); Councillors Irish, Pragnell, Sollitt and 
Trenchard 
 
Co-opted Members: Chris Cleeten, Richard Cutler, Charles Free, Ann Hardy, 
Andrew Jackson, Stephen Kemish, P Kirkpatrick, Lynne Massey, Lucie Myall, 
Sue O'Dowd, Edward Szary, Pat Tarry and Steve York 

 
Representing DC Leisure: Peter Leamore and Lucy May 
 
Representing Eastleigh Borough Council: Andy Milner and Andy Thompson 
 
 

1. APOLOGIES 
 

Apologies for absence were received from Councillors Noyce and Scott, and 
from Lydia Browning, Jo Parker and Coral Lewis from the Baby Massage 
Club. 

 
2. MINUTES OF PREVIOUS MEETING AND MATTERS ARISING 
 
 The Minutes of the meeting held on 15 October 2013 were agreed as a 

correct record. 
 
Matters Arising 
 
The replacement badminton posts and nets had now been installed. 
 
The all-weather pitches had been made good, and patched up in a number 
of areas, but would not be replaced at this time ahead of the proposed 
redevelopment. 
 
Dave Bowen was overseeing the artificial bowls green surface project.  The 
appointment of contractors was now in progress, however, the replacement 
would not take place until the end of the competitive bowls season as 
requested by the club. More would be reported on this at the next meeting 
of the Consultative Group. 
 
Following the withdrawal of public health funding, a successful grant 
application had meant that three year funding from the community 
activation fund had been secured.  This meant that a ‘Heath Activator’ role 
could be carried out by Marianne Cairley and her HealthWorks Team; and 
a new ‘Sports Activator’, Harry Lee, had now been appointed.  This meant 
that continued, strengthened links with the GP referral programme could be 
rolled out as well as a cancer rehabilitation course.  It was hoped that the 

Agenda Item 2

1



2 

 

three year vision would attract further funding in time. 
 
The gym only membership had been launched three months ago, and was 
being taken up in line with expectations. 
 
The option of a running / athletics track had been rejected by the Open 
Spaces Project Board (working group of the Eastleigh Local Area 
Committee) when presented by Dave Francis, EBC Landscape Architect. It 
was seen as being too formal for the park (old golf course area).  It is still 
being considered whether it should be presented as an option within the 
current consultation document.  Whilst it had been decided not to specify it 
as such, as Members had to look at the site as a whole and maximizing 
best use of it, views and expressions of interest on this would be welcomed 
as it was all still out for consultation.  Andy Thompson stressed the need 
for the governing body, British Athletics, to support the project as funding 
(via Christine Benning the local Development Officer) had not been 
successful in the past for the J track (training facility at Wyvern College).  
He urged the Running Club to open a dialogue with British Athletics as a 
third party funder would be essential for a project of this scale.  It was 
noted that the Open Spaces Project Board had not ruled it out and was 
very much in the mix. 
 

 
3. PRESENTATION ON NEW FLEMING PARK LEISURE CENTRE 
 
 Andy Milner, EBC Local Area Co-ordinator and Interim Project Manager for 

the proposed redevelopment, gave a presentation on the proposals and 
the current situation.  It was noted that the current 1970s build would 
require around £7m essential maintenance over the coming few years.  As 
such, it was considered timely to look to build a new, state of the art facility; 
that would increase participation; and make stronger connections with the 
surrounding open space.  The focus would be on ‘what we do well’ (swim 
and gym) and thus not take financial risks whilst making the space as 
flexible as possible to respond to changes/trends in the leisure industry as 
they arise. 
 
There were a number of key messages that Andy was keen to stress, 
namely that there would be no loss of green space; increased revenue 
would be used to help meet building costs; the centre would never actually 
close; and there would continue to be free parking (although should this be 
abused eg by commuter parking, then this might need to be revisited).   
 
Tenders (for a single stage design and build) were due in early October, 
and the all-in budget was in the region of £18-23m.  The new centre would 
be south of the site, with the current site opened up / forming a link to the 
existing car park.  The project would be made possible by working in 
partnership with Places for People Leisure, who had opened a number of 
new centres across the country over the last few years and with whom the 
Council had a long standing relationship.  It was planned that construction 
would commence in Spring 2015, with the new centre open in time for the 

2



3 

 

2016 Olympic (after which the existing building would be demolished). 
 
Andy set out the latest indicative thinking in respect of the attributes of the 
new centre; this included a 25 x 17m 8 lane pool (1.8m depth); a 10 x 20m 
learner pool with adjustable depth to 2m; 150 station gym; 2,500m2 of 
sports hall; 650m2 of studio space; 4 squash courts, glass backed with a 
possibility of dividing walls to make better use of the space in quieter 
periods; café area with concessions; climbing wall; spa; and the retention 
and upgrading of outdoor facilities. 
 
Andy concluded by saying that he was happy to come and meet with 
groups either individually or collectively as required, in order to ensure that 
what was being worked up meant the needs of users were being met as far 
as was possible within the scale of the project. 
 
The meeting then discussed the possibility of extending the pool size in 
order to attract other water-based sports as well as being able to host 
galas etc.  It was recognized that the Sport and Recreation Strategy sought 
to reward excellence and that a balance had to be struck between 
recreational swimming and competitive inputs.  Andy also confirmed that 
access and usage for the less-abled and disabled, with the intention of 
making the facilities more inclusive (much would come out in the detailed 
specification, but going beyond minimum standards was key).   
 
There was also a vision to make the centre easier to clean and maintain, 
for example through the choices on finishes.  Much had been learned over 
the years and from other centres.  It was also confirmed that the BREEAM 
excellent standard must be achieved, which includes maximising 
renewable energy in line with Council policy. 
 
The Chairman thanked Andy for his informative presentation, and looked 
forward to more detail at the next meeting. 
 

 
4. UPDATE FROM CLUBS 
 
 Fitness / Gym users were reporting a high level of satisfaction, seeing the 

centre as good value for money with friendly, helpful staff.  Cleanliness was 
sometimes an issue on Sunday morning in the upstairs studio and there 
had been an issue with regard to getting tickets for some classes.  FPLC 
representatives offered to follow these points up.  It was noted that there 
had been no consultation with users regarding the new steam room, and 
that some design issues could have been addressed by this. 
 
5 – 0 Club – Ann Hardy started by saying that all was going well with the 
Special Needs Club; membership now having doubled.  There had been a 
number of complaints from 5 – 0 Members regarding excessive queuing on 
weekday mornings, where two receptionists were often on the phone.  Ann 
had found that some Members avoided reception / paying and went 
straight to their classes.  Kinetica Members, who just needed to collect a 

3



4 

 

ticket, also by-passed reception at peak periods which could make the 
sessions look less well attended or popular than they actually were.  It was 
noted that better access control would be addressed in the new build.  
Lack of car parking spaces was sometimes an issue, and commuter 
parking had been witnessed, but it was noted that there were often spaces 
around the side and back of the centre. 
 
Eastleigh and District Sports Association for the Disabled reported a 
stable membership for the swim club and hoped that more members would 
be coming through. 
 
Dance classes were ever popular, a number of performances for charity 
were being held. 
 
Eastleigh Sub Aqua Club now had 50 Members and used FPLC pool for 
training purposes.  It was hoped more numbers of people and groups 
would share facilities. 
 
FP Judo Club used the centre on Saturday mornings and had a sister club 
running at The Hilt on Thursday evenings (located there as there was no 
room to house the session at FPLC).  It was a long-standing club 
comprising 8 coaches (5 at Level 2 and 3 at Level 1).  Last November, the 
Club received a national award for Best Club from the British Judo 
Association which took into account the coaching policy, its inclusive 
approach (such as with special needs members) and overall strategy and 
direction.  In the Hampshire Open Competition, a number of medals had 
been won.  The Hampshire Games had been a huge success and Steve 
York and Stephen Kemish asked that thanks in particular be recorded in 
the minutes for Janine Pickering’s hard work and excellent organization on 
this, which was greatly appreciated.  
 
It was noted that the mats were very tired at the centre, but it was hoped 
they could last until the new build.  There were now over 100 members, 
with around 60 attending on a Saturday.    
 
FP Lifesaving Club continued to run their Saturday sessions with 30 
members and 4 teachers now in place.  A number of new qualifications 
were being pursued, recognizing a range of levels.  One of the lifeguards 
was complementing her membership with related study at Winchester 
College.  The club also progressed related Duke of Edinburgh skills 
development.  Pat Tarry was delighted to announce that the Club had also 
won a prestigious cup in recent months. 
 
Eastleigh Running Club – Charles Free advised that membership 
currently stood at 300.  One of the Eastleigh ladies, Sam Aplin, had 
recently competed at international level for Team GB in the World Duathlon 
Championships in Spain and won a silver medal.  Members were involved 
with organizing the Eastleigh parkrun, which took place every Saturday 
morning at Fleming Park.  The popular timed 5k run was free to enter and 
introduced many newcomers to running.  A beginners course was held 

4



5 

 

over 10 weeks and 41 new runners graduated and joined the club.  The 
club was involved in organizing the Eastleigh 10k race which was very 
successful.  The race will be started an hour earlier next year to reduce 
traffic problems.  The club hosted the Hampshire Cross-country 
Championships at Fleming Park in January with a record number of 
runners from age 11 upwards.  Charles Free commented that training of 
athletes was really hindered by the lack of a proper running track in 
Eastleigh. 
 
Tennis Club – Richard Cutler advised that there were 160 people now on 
the coaching programme, mainly children but some adults too.  The club 
took part in the Hampshire School Games and had now sold-out all their 
Park Sport activities across the summer.  Richard indicated that there 
would be a number of challenges to be faced during the new build but that 
these could be overcome with an improved facility at the end of it.     
 
Squash Club – It was noted that guest attendances had gone up with 
most becoming members in their own right.  Overcoming busy periods had 
been overcome and the improved lighting was appreciated. 
 

 
5. ANY OTHER BUSINESS 
 
 It was requested that minutes from the Consultative Group be distributed 

earlier than at present (currently they were circulated with the next 
agenda).  In addition it was requested that Clubs submit their reports by 
email to the Democratic Services representative attending the meeting to 
save time and ensure accuracy. 

 
6. DATE OF NEXT MEETING 
 
 It was noted that the next meeting of the Consultative Group had already 

been timetabled for 14 October 2014 in order to consider the annual fees 
and charges report.  An update on the new build could be given at this 
meeting as well, but a more substantial briefing would be required later on 
in the year, but prior to the March 2015 meeting, once the successful 
tenderer had been appointed and the building specification was being 
worked up into more detail. 
 

 
 
 
 

5



6

This page is intentionally left blank



 1 

FLEMING PARK CONSULTATIVE GROUP 

14th October 2014  

PROPOSED SCALE OF CHARGES FROM JANUARY 2015 

Report of the Head of Sport and Active Lifestyles  

 

RECOMMENDATION 

It is recommended that the Group considers the proposed charges and makes 
comments, where appropriate, which will be considered at the Consultative 
meeting. 
 

Summary 
 
Proposals for charges at Fleming Park are presented to the Group for consideration. They 
reflect the Cabinet’s agreed budget guidelines but also take a number of other factors into 
account such as usage trends, operational costs, recent investment, competitors’ pricing 
policies and the customer’s ability to pay. 

Statutory Powers 
 
5111n and 5151 Local Government Act 1972 

 

Introduction 

1. In accordance with the Cabinet’s agreed budget guidelines and the Council’s 
 commitment to consult with the Group on prices for Fleming Park, the 
 proposed charges from January 2015 are presented for consideration. 

2. Group members will be aware of the current economic conditions which have 
affected customers’ disposable income but equally Places for People continue 
to incur rising costs.  

Proposed Charges 

3. The charges set out in appendix A are the result of joint discussions between 
Council officers and Places for People’s management and therefore represent 
a joint proposal. 

4. The overall target yield for increases is set by the Council and for 2015; this 
figure is an additional 4%.This does not mean that all charges have to rise by 
this amount; other factors need to be taken into consideration. These factors 
include trends, operational costs, recent investment, competitors’ pricing 

Agenda Item 3

7



 2 

policies, and customer’s ability to pay as well as the upcoming new leisure 
centre planned for completion in 2016.  

5. Places for People have invested in several facilities in recent years and the 
Council is under a contractual obligation to be flexible when considering 
charges which relate to these areas. 

6. The proposals of particular note are:-  

- The ATP and AWP pitches have only been increased by approximately 
1% due to their current poor quality. Plans for full refurbishment of the ATP 
and AWP’s are underway and will be integrated with the construction of 
the new leisure centre.  

- Friday Night Football is a council run community project that relies on 
external funding which is under threat; this hire charge has been frozen 
again.  

- The booking card costs have been frozen due to online bookers now being 
able to book 21 days in advance.  

- This is the 6th year that membership and gym prices have been frozen due 
to the current economic climate and local competition e.g. Pure Gym/ Easy 
Gym 

- To increase pitch and court bookings now include Saturday and Sundays 
as ‘off peak’ to offer more affordable rates at the weekend. 

7. A small number of the proposals may seem high in percentage terms but the 
actual rise in money should also be taken into account and also there is a 
“rounding up” effect to ease problems with change for customers and 
reception staff.  

 

Conclusion 

8. The proposed charges from January 2015 are presented to the Consultative 
Group for consideration and comment.  

 

ANDREW THOMPSON 
Head of Sport and Active Lifestyles  

 
Civic Offices 
Leigh Road 
Eastleigh 
Hampshire 
SO50 9YN 
 

8



 3 

Date: 30th September 2014 
Contact Officer: Andrew Thompson 
Tel No: 023 8068 8357 
e-mail: Andrew.thompson@eastleigh.gov.uk 
Appendices Attached: 1 
CR305 
 
 
 

LOCAL GOVERNMENT ACT 1972 – SECTION 100D 

The following documents disclose facts or matters on which this report or an 
important part of it is based and have been relied upon to a material extent in the 
preparation of this report: 

 

APPENDIX A

Proposed changes from : January 2015

Jan-12 Jan-13

Jan-14 

Current 

charge

Jan-15 

Proposed 

change

% 

increase

Booking Card

Partners 24.70 25.70 26.20 26.20 0.00%

Individuals 18.75 19.50 19.90 19.60 0.00%

Junior-Renewal 9.90 10.30 10.50 10.50 0.00%

Junior- new member 12.35 12.80 13.05 13.05 0.00%

Entrance Fees

Adult 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 n/a

Junior 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 n/a

Hire of Equipment

Hire charge 2.25 2.25 2.25 2.30 2.17%

Center - Wide Membership

Joining 40.00 40.00 40.00 40.00 0.00%

Joining fee - direct debit 80.00 80.00 80.00 80.00 0.00%

Family 820.00 820.00 820.00 820.00 0.00%

Single 410.00 410.00 410.00 410.00 0.00%

Gym

Casual Gym 7.00 7.00 7.00 7.00 0.00%

Casual Health 6.75 7.00 7.00 7.00 0.00%

Casual Full 10.00 10.00 10.00 10.00 0.00%

Sunbed - 3 min session 1.10 n/a n/a n/a

Classes

Step Reebok - off peak 4.95 5.10 5.30 5.40 1.85%

Step Reebok - peak 5.60 5.74 5.95 6.00 0.83%

Aerobics-off peak 4.95 5.10 5.30 5.40 1.85%

aerobics- peak 5.60 5.75 5.95 6.00 0.83%

Deepwater Aquatherapy 3.35 3.50 3.65 3.75 2.67%

Aquacise-peak 5.20 5.35 5.55 5.65 1.77%

F
it
n
e
s
s

 
 
 

9



 4 

 

Badminton - per hour

Peak 10.35 10.50 10.90 11.15 2.24%

Off Peak Adult 6.70 6.90 7.15 7.30 2.05%

Off Peak Junior 2.70 2.80 2.90 2.95 1.69%

Squash per 40 minutes

Peak 6.60 6.90 7.15 7.30 2.05%

Off Peak Adult 4.80 5.00 5.20 5.30 1.89%

Off Peak Junior 1.95 2.00 2.10 2.15 2.33%

Squash Club 5.95 6.20 6.40 6.55 2.29%

Table Tennis - per hour

Adult 2.85 3.00 3.30 3.40 2.94%

Junior 1.20 1.30 1.45 1.50 3.33%

Half Main Hall - per hour

Adult 52.00 54.00 56.00 57.50 2.61%

Off peak Junior 21.50 22.30 23.20 23.80 2.52%

New Hall

Half Hall - per hour 21.50 22.35 23.25 23.85 2.52%

Tennis - Peak Adult 21.50 22.35 23.25 23.85 2.52%

Tennis - off Peak Adult 15.00 15.60 16.25 16.65 2.40%

Tennis - off Peak Junior 10.00 10.40 10.80 11.00 1.82%

Special Activities

Studio 1 per hour 40.00 41.60 43.25 44.30 2.37%

Garden Room - per hour 18.50 19.25 20.00 20.50 2.44%

Five - O- Club 3.75 3.90 4.05 4.15 2.41%

Creche - per 1/2 hour 1.15 1.20 1.25 1.30 3.85%

Parent & Child

Fitness Mornings (Thurs 5.00 5.20 5.40 5.50 1.82%

Tumble Zone

Parent + 1 2.85 2.95 3.00 3.10 3.23%

Additional Child 0.85 0.90 0.95 1.00 5.00%

Artificial Turf Full Pitch - per hour

Peak Adult 68.00 68.00 68.75 70.00 1.79%

Peak Junior 42.00 42.00 42.50 43.00 1.16%

Off Peak Adult 34.00 35.00 35.40 36.00 1.67%

Off Peak Junior 21.65 22.50 22.75 23.00 1.09%

Artificial Turf Half Pitch - per hour

Peak Adult 37.00 38.00 38.40 39.00 1.54%

Peak Junior 26.00 27.00 27.25 28.00 2.68%

Off Peak Adult 25.00 26.00 26.25 26.90 2.42%

Off Peak Junior 11.35 11.80 11.95 12.00 0.42%

All Weather Pitch - per hour

Peak Adult 36.00 37.00 37.40 38.30 2.35%

Peak Junior 19.00 19.70 19.90 20.40 2.45%

Peak Junior (FA Charter) 15.85 16.50 16.65 17.00 2.06%

Off Peak Adult 23.50 24.40 24.65 25.25 2.38%

Off Peak Junior 11.00 11.40 11.50 11.80 2.54%

Friday Night Soccer 8.00 8.00 8.00 8.00 0.00%

Tennis (Outdoor per court- per hour)

Peak Adult 6.80 7.00 7.15 7.30 2.05%

Peak Junior 3.50 3.60 3.70 3.80 2.63%

Off Peak Adult 5.00 5.20 5.30 5.40 1.85%

Off Peak Junior 2.00 2.10 2.15 2.20 2.27%

Netball (Outdoor per court per hour)

Peak Adult 15.00 16.00 16.65 17.10 2.63%

Peak Junior 4.50 5.00 5.20 5.35 2.80%

Off Peak Adult 6.25 6.50 6.75 6.90 2.17%

Off Peak Junior 2.50 2.60 2.70 2.75 1.82%

Cricket

Pitch with dressing room - half day 62.00 64.50 67.00 68.65 2.40%

Ptich with dressing room - evening 62.00 64.50 67.00 68.65 2.40%

Pitch for children (no dressing room) 21.50 22.50 23.40 23.95 2.30%

Football

Pitch - Adults 62.00 64.50 67.00 68.70 2.47%

Ptich - chidren (Under 18) 23.50 24.50 25.45 26.00 2.12%

Mini soccer pitch (40 min game) 9.50 10.00 10.50 10.75 2.33%

Bowls

Singles, pairs, triples or rinks per hour 4.55 4.70 4.85 4.95 2.02%

Woods - per hour or part hour 1.10 1.15 1.20 1.25 4.00%

Season ticket (May-Sept) 105.00 110.00 115.00 117.85 2.42%

Season ticket (Oct-Apr) Scapagreen 56.50 58.75 61.00 62.55 2.48%

Season ticket (May - Sept) OAP 54.85 57.00 59.25 60.75 2.47%

Season ticket (Oct-Apr) Scapagreen 28.90 30.00 31.20 32.00 2.50%

Junior rink per hour per person 2.15 2.25 2.35 2.40 2.08%

Season ticket junior 25.55 26.50 27.55 28.25 2.48%

O
u
td

o
o
r 
B

o
o
k
in

g
s

In
d
o
o
r 
B

o
o
k
in

g
s

10



 5 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Swimming

Adult 4.10 4.25 4.40 4.50 2.22%

Junior 1.85 1.90 1.95 2.00 2.50%

Children Under 5 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

Weekly Adult 10.00 10.40 10.80 10.90 0.92%

Weekly Junior 3.40 3.50 3.65 3.75 2.67%

Swim Fun Session 2.40 2.50 2.60 2.70 3.70%

Family Swim 2 Ad + 3 Jun 9.00 9.40 9.75 9.85 1.02%

Monthly Swim

Adult 39.00 40.55 42.00 43.00 2.33%

Junior 12.80 13.30 13.85 14.20 2.46%

Annual Swim - Adult 275.00 286.00 297.00 305.00 2.62%

Pool Hire

Both Pools 100.00 104.00 108.00 110.00 1.82%

Main Pool 70.00 72.00 76.00 78.00 2.56%

Teaching Pool 36.00 37.50 39.00 40.00 2.50%

1 lane 13.30 13.80 14.35 14.75 2.71%

School Charges

Swimming - per head 1.85 1.90 2.00 2.05 2.44%

Squash - per court 4.50 4.70 4.90 5.00 2.00%

Badminton per court 5.75 6.00 6.25 6.40 2.34%

Table Tennis - per table 1.80 1.90 1.95 2.00 2.50%

Studio 1 per hour 26.00 27.00 28.00 28.70 2.44%

Artificial pitch - per 1/2 pitch 15.00 15.60 16.25 16.65 2.40%

Tennis (Outdoor per court) 3.70 3.85 4.00 4.10 2.44%

Netball (Outdoor per court) 5.60 5.80 6.00 6.15 2.44%

AWP 15.80 16.40 17.00 17.45 2.58%

S
w
im

m
in
g

S
c
h
o
o
ls

11



12

This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	2 Minutes of Previous Meeting and Matters Arising
	3 Proposed Scale of Charges from January 2015

